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September 20, 2023


Jay Rodenbeck, Development Facilitation Team
City of Albuquerque Planning Department
600 2nd St., Plaza del Sol
Albuquerque, NM 87106



Re:	MDS Innovation Park II/Alternative Landscape Plan - DFT Comment Response
Project Number: PR-2023-008842
Application Number: SI-2023-01209


Dear Mr. Rodenbeck and Ms. Strange,


The letter outlines the project team’s responses to the comments from the Development Facilitation Team received on September 12, 2023 from Bonnie Strange for above referenced project. Only DFT comments, that were highlighted to require action, are noted. Comments are in bold, action items provided by a case planner are in orange, and the responses are in italics.



Planning – Case Comments:


Per 5-6(C)(5)(e) Organic mulch is required as ground cover under trees within a 5-foot radius around the tree trunk, but not directly against the trunk. In these areas, weed barrier fabric is prohibited. 
Update planting details on Planting Details sheet LP501. Details are currently showing mulch (gravel mulch?) over weed barrier fabric. Details must show organic mulch at 5’ radius around the tree trunk, and in this area, weed barrier fabric is prohibited.
The applicant requests that deviation from this requirement be considered as part of the Alternative Landscape Plan. One reason for the design team to submit an alternative landscape plan was due to the inability to accommodate trees in typical required locations – the nature of filming production prevents for any tree planting within parking lots, for example. Trees are concentrated mainly as part of inner streetscape in strips between sidewalks and curbs and in the large stormwater basins (Central Arroyo). Organic mulch rings within 6’-0” wide inner streetscape areas are not feasible as those areas are designed to accommodate stormwater runoff via curb cuts. Concentrated flow of runoff displaces organic mulch and creates long-term maintenance problems. Trees planted within Central Arroyo are planted within native seed ground cover with no filter fabric. Planting trees within a native seed ground cover as an alternative to organic mulch meets the criteria of IDO Section 14-16-5-6(C)(16) and creates a visually attractive, sustainable desert landscape. 


Per 5-6(C)(7)(a) Vegetation required by this Section 14-16-5-6 shall be located at least 3 feet in any direction from any fire hydrants, valve vaults, hose bibs, manholes, hydrants, and fire department connections.  
Please show compliance with this requirement – General Notes currently states that “vegetative screening surrounding ground-mounted transformers and utility pads shall allow 10’ of clearance minimum in front of the equipment door and 5’ of clearance minimum on the remaining sides for safe operation and maintenance.” Does this note include Fire Department connections? Does the Landscape Architect know where fire department connections are proposed? If not, this could perhaps be added as a General Note.
Fire Department Connections (FDCs) are mounted at buildings. Planting revisions at Production Office 1, Stage 10 and Stage 14 are noted. See LP108 and LP113.  


Overall Landscape Plan states that shredded wood mulch will be removed from project since after plan consolidation the above requirement is met without using it. 
Please elaborate. Why will this be removed after consolidation? Is this the screened tree mulch 3” depth over weed fabric referenced in the hatch legend?  
Previously, two separate landscape plans were submitted, each with a separate landscape calculation. With the consolidation of two separate landscape plans into one consolidated plan, the overall requirement for the use of gravel or crusher fines (limited to a maximum of 75% per 5-6(C)(5)(c) is being met by organic native seed coverage. The screened tree mulch is removed from the hatch legend. See LP501.


Per 5-6(C)(10)(b) trees shall not be planted within 10 feet in any direction of the centerline of a sewer or water line. 
Articulate how the proposed landscape plan complies with this code. This could be a general note.
See General Sheet Note U on sheet LP100. 


Per 5-6(C)(10)(e) all screening and vegetation surrounding ground-mounted transformers and utility pads must allow 10 feet of clearance for access and to ensure the safety of the work crews and public during maintenance and repair.  
Articulate how the proposed landscape plan complies with this code. General Notes currently states that “vegetative screening surrounding ground-mounted transformers and utility pads shall allow 10’ of clearance minimum in front of the equipment door and 5’ of clearance minimum on the remaining sides for safe operation and maintenance.”
Transformers are located at each building and at parking lots with LV3 EV chargers. Transformers at Mills and Stages are not located within landscape areas. Transformer located to the west of Mill 1 is located in a landscape planting area with no plants. Revisions to plants at Production Office 1 transformer are noted on LP113.  


Plans affected by comments with revisions noted in red are listed below and provided as part of the Comments response (several changes were already issued to the contractor as part of ASI process):

· LP100 – Revision to General Sheet Note
· LP108 – Planting revisions at Stages to accommodate FDCs and to avoid sanitary sewer line.
· LP113 – Planting revisions at Production Office 1 to accommodate FDCs and to avoid transformer clearance zone 
· LP501 – Revision to material (hatch) schedule


We respectfully request approval of the alternative landscape plan. If you have any questions or need clarification, please contact me at jitkad@dpsdesign.org or at (505)761-9700.

Sincerely,
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Jitka Dekojova
Landscape Architect, Dekker Perich Sabatini
Agent for Netflix Studios Albuquerque
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